
Minutes 
 

1 
 

 

 
 

 
 
Meeting details 
Date: Wednesday, Dec 6th, 2023 

Time: 10:00am - 12:00 pm 
Location: Zoom 
 
 
Committee members and alternates present 

 
 
Committee members and alternates absent 
 

 
Employee Representatives 
• Sybill Hyppolite, Washington State Labor Council  
• Brenda Wiest, Teamsters 117 

 
Employer Representatives 
• Bob Battles, Association of Washington Business 
• Josie Cummings, Avista Corp  
• Julia Gorton, Washington Hospitality Association 

 
General Public Representatives 
• Anne Paxton, Unemployment Law Project 
 

 

 
• Tammie Hetrick, Washington Food Industry 

Association (alternate employer rep) 
• Monica Holland, Northwest Justice Project 

(alternate public rep) 
• Joe Kendo, WA State Labor Council (employe  

rep) 
• Allyson O’Malley-Jones, Northwest Justice 

Project (alternate public rep) 
• Cindy Richardson, UNITE HERE Local 8 
• Josh Swanson, Operating Engineers 302 
• William Westmoreland, Pac Mtn WF Dev 

Council 
 
 

ESD staff  
• Joy Adams 
• Joshua Dye 
• Vaughn Ellis 
• Colin Helsley 
• Caitlyn Jekel 
• Matt Klein  
• Scott Michael 
• JR Richards 
• Stephanie Sams 
 
 
 

 

 

Unemployment Insurance 
Advisory Committee 



Minutes 
 

2 
 

 

Summary 
 
Meeting Recorded 
This meeting was recorded and also livestreamed by TVW.  
 
Welcome and Opening Remarks 
ESD Unemployment Insurance Customer Support Director, JR Richards, welcomed everyone and 
asked committee assistant Colin Helsley to call roll.  

 
Meeting Minutes 
JR Richards requested that everyone review the October 2023 UIAC meeting minutes and provide 
their feedback. Brenda Weist made a motion to approve the minutes and Julia Gorton seconded the 
motion. All in favor said “aye”, no members were opposed. The October 18th, 2023 meeting minutes 
were approved.  
 
Agenda  
JR Richards reviewed the following agenda items (also see Addendum I) 

• Approval of meeting Oct. 18 meeting minutes 
• Legislative reports 
• Legislation and Rulemaking 
• MWBA Report 
• Trust Fund Report 
• Appeals updates with ESD and OAH 
• Workload in Tax and Wage 
• Overpayments update 
• 2024 UIAC meetings 
• Public comment 
• Adjourn 

 
Legislation and Rulemaking  
JR Richards handed the meeting over to Caitlyn Jekel, Government Relations Director, ESD, to 
provide a Legislation and Rulemaking update. Caitlyn presented information from the following slides: 

https://tvw.org/video/unemployment-insurance-advisory-committee-2023121034/?eventID=2023121034


Minutes 
 

3 
 

 

 

 
 
Julia Gorton asked Caitlyn to clarify what the change would be related to striking workers. Caitlyn 
answered that currently, individuals who are on strike are not eligible for unemployment insurance 
during strike and that this change would be establishing that eligibility criteria. Julia then asked whether 
it is a socialized or charged benefit in the proposal. Caitlyn answered that it is a socialized benefit. 
 
Anne Paxton asked whether this currently applies to lockouts as well as strikes. Scott Michaels 
answered that under current law as it pertains to lockouts, individuals who are locked out are generally 
eligible for benefits, with a small exception being employers who are part of a multi-party bargaining 
unit where one employer has been struck and the other employers lock their employees out as part of 
that bargaining process. Under the proposed bill, such locked out employees would all be entitled to 
benefits. 
 
Bob Battles asked whether any conformity issues are anticipated and if this would expand the voluntary 
quits list. Scott answered it’s not a voluntary quit and that various states have ways in which they 
disqualify striking workers, and if this bill were to pass, Washington would be joining a small group of 
states that allow benefits to striking workers after a certain number of weeks. Scott also provided a link 
in the meeting chat to a comparison chart from the US DOL on how different states treat striking 
workers. https://oui.doleta.gov/unemploy/pdf/uilawcompar/2022/nonmonetary.pdf (pages 5-21 to 
5-25). 

https://oui.doleta.gov/unemploy/pdf/uilawcompar/2022/nonmonetary.pdf


Minutes 
 

4 
 

 

Bob asked how this would not be categorized as a voluntary quit since striking is an employee choice. 
Scott noted that if a person voluntarily quits without good cause, then they are disqualified for 7 weeks 
and have to return to work and earn 7 times their weekly benefit amount. Scott continued that this bill 
is structured to only disqualify workers for the first week of a strike and that it’s classified in a different 
statute separate and apart from voluntary quits. Caitlyn Jekel added that as far as benefit charging is 
concerned, it would likely be structurally aligned with benefit charge relief for other things that would 
be akin to voluntary quit. 
 
Seeing no further questions on the topic of striking workers, Caitlyn then moved to the slide’s second 
bullet regarding creating a wage replacement program for certain Washington workers excluded from 
unemployment insurance. Caitlyn stated that this policy is still proceeding forward and that ESD is 
tracking it.  
 
Caitlyn then provided an opportunity for committee members to speak to any other bills coming this 
year associated with unemployment insurance. Hearing none, Caitlyn handed the floor to Stephanie 
Frazee, Legislation and Rules Coordinator, ESD to provide a rulemaking update. Stephanie presented 
on the following slides: 

 

 



Minutes 
 

5 
 

 

 
 
MWBA Report 
With no questions raised on rulemaking, JR Richards gave the floor back to Caitlyn Jekel to present the 
last segment regarding legislative reports, specifically the Minimum Weekly Benefit Amount analysis. 
Caitlyn presented on the following slide and stated among other things, that the report would be 
focused more directly on the outcomes experienced by claimants. Caitlyn added that final revisions will 
be sent to committee members by email for feedback. 

 
 
Julia Gorton thanked Caitlyn and asked what the peer review process looks like. Caitlyn answered that 
the analysis would be shared with others in the research community for feedback to inform the 
approach moving forward. Julia asked if comments and concerns raised about the report by UIAC 
members will be included when it is sent out for review. Caitlyn answered that the questions raised in 
these meetings will be informative to the process and therefore likely put forward. 
 
Anne Paxton asked if this would include any kind of compilation of the objections that were made, 
specifically to the analysis of causality. Caitlyn answered that a description of the intended approach 
with peer review, the underlying methodology, and the ongoing research by the department will be 
kept in the report, but that focus at this juncture will be on those components of the report that have 
raised concerns among committee members. Anne asked whether this means it’s being tabled. Caitlyn 
answered yes and added “It is our intention that the report that we publish is reflective of the 



Minutes 
 

6 
 

 

perspectives that have been shared here. It's important to us that the nature of the relationship with 
this advisory committee in that report is honored and appreciated, and so we will share it with you. If 
there's further conversation necessary, or engagement on the way that this next version of the draft is, 
we can put this on the agenda again.” Anne thanked Caitlyn. 
 
JR Richards then handed the floor to Vaughn Ellis, Actuary Analyst, ESD who presented information 
form the following slides regarding the November trust fund report. 

 

 



Minutes 
 

7 
 

 

 
 
No questions were raised. 
 
Appeals Updates 
Brendon Tukey, Division Chief, OAH then presented updates on appeals using the following slides. 

  



Minutes 
 

8 
 

 

 
 
Sybill Hyppolite asked what the pre-pandemic average time and hearing status was. Brendon answered 
that it varied but that about 30% of the time the 60% within 30 days goal was achieved, and that 
processing time on average was much lower, often 50 days or below, and certainly much lower than 
the 100 days which is common right now. He added that the goal is to do better than pre-pandemic 
times.  
 
Brendon continued to the next slides and provided further updates. 

 



Minutes 
 

9 
 

 

 
 
Regarding the above slide, Anne Paxton thanked Brendon for the information and asked how records 
of appeals are being handled. Brendon answered that if there is an appeal, a court certified interpreter 
listens to the hearing, interprets it, and creates an audio record of that interpretation, which the CRA 
judge can review along with the written record, which is in English.  
 
Anne then referenced the overview slide and asked if there is any information on default rates such as 
number of employer defaults vs. claimant defaults, or any information about the issues involved. 
Brendon answered that he can provide exact numbers in writing but that the highest default rates tend 
to be single party claimant appeals that don't have an associated overpayment. 
 
Seeing no further questions, Brendon stated he is happy to provide further information and follow up 
to anyone who may want it and provided the committee his email: Brendon.tukey@oah.wa.gov. 
 
The meeting was then paused for a 10-minute break and resumed at 11:02am. 
 
Workload in Tax and Wage 
Upon return, Mathew Bowen, Management Analyst, Tax & Wage, ESD provided information on 
workload in Tax and Wage using the following slide. 

mailto:Brendon.tukey@oah.wa.gov


Minutes 
 

10 
 

 

 
 
Anne Paxton asked what is the source of the 25% reduction in staffing in the face of the large increase 
in new businesses. JR Richards answered that this was not an intentional decrease, but that those are 
positions that are now open and are not being filled due to funding changes.  
 
Overpayment Update 
Seeing no further questions JR used the following slides to provide an update on overpayment waivers. 

 
*This slide has been updated to include the number of individual waivers approved as of December 5th, 
2023. 
 
Sybill Hyppolite asked about how to help get the message out to further awareness about overpayment 
waivers as there are about 15,000 folks unaccounted for, and also asked what the current outreach 
process is with those who have not yet responded to ESD notifications. JR answered that there is a 
communications team working on ways to do additional outreach with UIAC committee members. 
She also explained that there have been multiple waves of email communication and one wave of paper 
communication, as well as use of media (news articles). Responsiveness to these different forms is 
evaluated, and feedback is used to determine which populations to target. JR added that leveraging 
stakeholders and community partners will be a part of ESD’s next steps in outreach to those who are 
eligible to apply. Sybill responded that she looks forward to helping with this effort soon and noted 



Minutes 
 

11 
 

 

that some collections calls were being made. JR explained that ESD is meeting the legal requirements 
for collections but not engaging in additional forms at this point. She added that adding information 
on overpayment waivers to automatic collections letters is being looked at. Sybill asked if callers are 
currently being redirected to apply for overpayment waivers. JR answered yes. 
 
Meeting Cadence  
JR Richards presented the proposed meeting cadence and topics from the following slide to the 
committee for consideration. 

 
 
Julia Gorton expressed support for this plan.  
 
Bob Battles expressed support while also noting some possible conflicts in September with policy 
summits. Bob asked if all meetings will be virtual or if any will be in-person. JR answered that this is 
open for consideration. Bob put forth the idea of hybrid meetings with either option available, Brenda 
Wiest agreed with Bob’s statements. 
 
Sybil Hyppolite also expressed support for the proposed cadence and stated she is open to more in-
person meetings. 
 
JR stated that as some committee members were absent at this meeting, there will not be a vote on this 
yet, and that she will send out the above proposed cadence by email for all to consider before the next 
meeting. 
 
 
Public Comments 
JR reminded meeting participants that if they would like their comments captured in the meeting 
minutes to please email them to camille.galeno@esd.wa.gov. 

mailto:camille.galeno@esd.wa.gov


Minutes 
 

12 
 

 

 
No public comments were made.  
 
Scott Michael Leaving ESD 
Scott Michael announced to the committee that December will be his last month at ESD and therefore 
that this would be his last UIAC meeting. Scott stated that it has been a privilege and an honor to work 
with this committee and informed attendees that he has accepted a new position with the Attorney 
General’s office representing Labor and Industries. Committee members thanked Scott for his 
partnership with the committee and wished him well.  
 
Adjourned 

JR Richards thanked everyone for joining and ended the meeting. 

 
Action Items  

• (JR or Scott Michael) Email the following link provided by Scott to committee members - 
USDOL comparison chart on how different states deal with UI eligibility for striking and 
locked out workers: 
https://oui.doleta.gov/unemploy/pdf/uilawcompar/2022/nonmonetary.pdf  (pages 5-21 to 5-
25)  

• (JR) Connect with Sybill Hyppolite on overpayment waiver outreach. 
• (JR) Email proposed meeting cadence to committee members. 
 

 
Next meeting: 
January 26, 2023, from 2:00 to 3:00 p.m. via Zoom. 
 
 

  

https://oui.doleta.gov/unemploy/pdf/uilawcompar/2022/nonmonetary.pdf


Minutes 
 

13 
 

 

Addendum 1 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
  



Minutes 
 

14 
 

 

Addendum II 

 


